AMENDMENT NO. 1, DATED JANUARY 9, 2009 TO 

RFP NO. AHRQ-08-10004, issued December 19, 2007

MEDICAL EXPENDITURE PANEL SURVEY HOUSEHOLD COMPONENT
PROPOSAL DUE FEBRUARY 14, 2008, 12 NOON, EST.

Questions on the RFP and responses are set forth below: 

1. Question: In the RFP, under Data Processing in Section 2.1, and page 37 the contractor would provide Web based interactive tables.  Can you expand on the nature of these tables and the interactive features you anticipate.  Are these tables those which are currently available on the MEPS Web site or are these new tables?  If they are new, will they be integrated with the existing set of tables?  Are there programming requirements necessary to integrate them?  Are these tables to be formatted for static web presentation (e.g., HTML) or are there additional requirements for these tables?  How extensive is the set of tables? Is there a requirement for the contractor to provide programming for interactive selection and definition of tables or for some other form of web-based user interaction with the tables?  If so, what is the scope of this requirement?   
Response: It is the expectation that the contractor will deliver static versions of the following tables currently on the MEPS website.  

Expenditures by healthcare service

Expenditures by medical conditions

Health insurance

Quality of care

Access to care

Prescription drugs

http://www.meps.ahrq.gov/mepsweb/data_stats/quick_tables_search.jsp?component=1&subcomponent=0
Responsibilities would entail updating the above tables by adding the most recent year of data available for each table (varies by table).  Tables are presented by a small number of key person characteristics, e.g., age, health insurance status, and health status.  Specifications for constructing the stub variables will be provided by AHRQ.
2. Question: Reading the FAR clause I believe the maximum MRI may request as a fee is 10 % of the contract value excluding the fee, is this correct? 
Response: That is correct

3. Question: Are there any guidelines for splitting the fee between the base fee and award fee? 
Response: No there are no guidelines, however the majority of fees negotiated on AHRQ contracts do not exceed more than 7 or 8% (inclusive of base and award fee). 

4. Question: Please provide clarification that the Work Breakdown Schedules or other EVMS parts are not a part of the original proposal.  
Response: That is correct, this is something that is developed once the contract is awarded and entrance meetings begin.  

5. Question: What type of certified documentation is required to indicate the offer has a cost accounting system in place which allows for collection, tracking and reporting of all costs under a cost reimbursement type contract?  
Response: Negotiated indirect cost rate agreements with a cognizant government agency is considered sufficient to meet this requirement. 

6. Question: Will the contractor need to purchase the license for the survey instrument from WESTAT or does AHRQ own the instrument? 
Response: The survey instrument is owned by AHRQ and will made available to the contractor.

7. Question: What is the platform used for programming the instrument? 
Response: The survey instrument is based on Blaise with modification.  The code necessary to generate and maintain the MEPS instrument will be provided to the contractor at time of award.  The following methodology report is available upon request: “Report on MEPS Panel 12 Blaise/WVS Interview Administration Time”

8. Question: Is it possible to make available CAPI system specifications prior to proposal submission? 
Response: Please contact Mary Haines at Mary.Haines@ahrq.hhs.gov. for a CD-ROM containing CAPI specifications and reference materials.
On page 97, the RFP indicates that the management plan is to include a person-loading chart "which presents the number of person-days allocated to each task and subtask for each category of staff/new hires/subcontractors/consultants for each year of the contract and for the total contract."  The task outline provided for the person-loading chart identifies a total of 59 tasks and subtasks.  Presentation of the staff breakout for each task and subtask and for each panel and each year of the project will require a substantial number of pages.  

9. Question: Given the desired page limit for the technical proposal, is there an alternative presentation that would be acceptable, such as one in which the tasks are summarized to the major task headings?  
Response: This would be acceptable.
10. Question: Would it be acceptable to present the person loading chart in hours rather than in days? 
Response: Yes
11. Question: Can we request a copy of the current contract? 
Response: Yes, a request for the current contract may be made through AHRQ’s FOIA Officer, Nancy Comfort. 
12. Question: What is the current contract amount? 
Response: The current contract amount is $292,608,437. 
13. Question: What are the external benchmarks (sect. 2.1, p. 11)? 
Response: Benchmarking consists of comparisons with similar data sources, such as the National Health Interview Survey, Current Population Survey, and the National Health Accounts.
14. Question: How will website-related work be distributed over the new contractor and the website contractor (Social Scientific Systems)? In particular, who will make the interactive tables interactive (sect. 2.1, p. 11)? 
Response: The contractor will be responsible for providing static tables for posting to the MEPS interactive website. 
15. Question: Does most of the responsibility for 508 compliance (sect. 3.0, p. 13) fall on the website contractor (Social Scientific Systems)? 
Response: All materials to be posted on the MEPS website are to be 508 compliant regardless of the contractor, i.e., Public Use File (PUF) documents must be 508 compliant.
16. Question: The RFP specifies that it is the contractor that is responsible for the “Participants’ Corner” portion of the website (sect. 3.0, p. 13). Is this responsibility limited to the “Household Participant” section of the “Participants’ Corner”? 
Response: Yes
17. Question: Will AHRQ be responsible for obtaining OMB approval in years beyond 2009? 
Response: Yes, with input from the contractor.
18. Question: Can we get a list of the 428 PSUs?  
Response: The actual PSUs are confidential, however, the sample is drawn from all 50 states.  The probability of selection is based on population density.
19. Question: Page 1 of the solicitation calls for the business proposal to be submitted in an original with 5 hard copies.  Instructions on p. 102 call for an original and 4 hard copies.  How many copies are required? 
Response: Please provide and original with FIVE (5) hard copies of the business proposal. 
20. Question: What are the other potential languages, other than English and Spanish, which the survey may be conducted in?  (Page 18)  
Response: The CAPI instrument is available in two languages, English and Spanish.  In addition, the contractor shall make available translators for other possible languages such as Asian dialects (there is an over sample of Asians).  
 
21. Question: Are you including Alaska and Hawaii in the sample or is it the continental United States and Puerto Rico? Page 17 (4.3.1. Implement and document the MEPS HC sample design).  
Response: Alaska and Hawaii are included in the sample, Puerto Rico is not.
 

22. Question: Will AHRQ be sending the sample panel with the ineligible college students under the age of 24 removed or will the contractor be responsible for reviewing the 2008 NHIS and removing those who are ineligible from the sample? (Page 19, the Key Persons Section) 
Response: The contractor will be responsible for removing the ineligible students.
  

23. Question: How many potential records are in each panel? While we understand that it is different from the number of reporting units in each panel, how is the number of respondents related to the number of reporting units? (Page 17-18)  
Response: There are approximately 14,500 responding units and 35,000 sample persons. 
 

24. Question: In 2002, an RFP was released for questionnaire to be reformatted from DOS to Windows regarding this project, is questionnaire reformat a component of this RFP or is the questionnaire finalized for 2009? 
Response: Yes, the translation of the MEPS questionnaire from DOS to Windows will be completed for the 2009 Panel.  Some minor changes to the instrument within the Windows base instrument will be required each year.    
 

25. Question: Is the incumbent eligible to bid on the project? 
Response: Yes
End of Amendment No. 1
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